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Case #2022-05: Nicholas Calvetti and Amherst Label Realty, LLC. for the property located 
Milford Tax Map 15, Lot 15, 15 Westchester Drive – Special Exception Application Wetland 
Buffer Encroachment 

The applicant is before the Board of Adjustment seeking a SPECIAL EXCEPTION from the Milford Zoning 
Ordinance, Article VI, Section 6.02.6 to disturb approximately 7,410 square feet of wetland buffer area to allow 
the installation of a infiltration basin and related site improvements in the Industrial ‘I’ Zoning District.  In 
reviewing the files for this property, I offer the following comments: 

1. Existing Conditions:

a. The subject property is approximately 6.66 acres.  The property contains a label warehousing and
manufacturing facility with a building footprint of approximately 32,800 sf+/- and associated site features
such as drive isles, parking, walkways and landscaping.  The remaining western portion of the property
remains undeveloped.

b. The project area is boarded by Elite Hydraulics to the north, Westchester Drive and multi-family
residences to the east, a railroad to the south, and Tucker Brook to the west. Tucker Brook bisects the
overall property and the runoff generated by the property ultimately drains to the brook.  As stated in the
application, the wetlands within the project area have been flagged. These wetlands include a high value
wetland associated by Tucker Brook, a small pocket wetland within the 100-year flood plan, and a
wetland created by a railroad and drainage ditch along the south property line.

c. The facility is serviced by municipal water and waste water.

d. The property contains in excess of 284 linear feet of frontage on Westchester Drive.  The facility is
accessed by two curb cuts located at the eastern northeast and southeast corners of the property. The
northerly curb cut is shared with the abutting property owner, Elite Hydraulics.

e. The subject property lies within the Industrial Zoning Distract.  Pursuant to the Zoning Ordinance Section
5.06.4 No minimum lot size and frontage is required for Lots within the Industrial Zoning District
serviced by both municipal sewerage and water systems other than those requirements that relate to
usable open space so long as access to sewer and water is obtained.  In addition, the all structures fall
outside of the minimum 30 foot front and 15 foot side/rear dimensional setbacks.

2. Amherst Label proposes to expand their existing facilities with a net building increase of 9,900 sf+/-. The
additional site improvements include the installation of an infiltration basin within the delineated 50 foot
delineated wetland buffer associated with Tucker Brook to provide the required water quality and attenuation



Town Hall – 1 Union Square – Milford, NH 03055-4240 – (603) 249-0620 – FAX (603) 673-2273 
website: www.milford.nh.gov       

for the proposed redevelopment. To install the infiltration basin for treatment and discharge rate control of the 
runoff, the 50' wetland buffer associated with Tucker Brook will be impacted by approximately 4,690 sf.   

In addition to the infiltration basin, a collection swale will be constructed within the 25 foot wetland buffer of 
the existing wetland/ditch along the southern portion of the property.  The proposal will result in an additional 
wetland buffer disturbance of approximately 2,720 square feet.  

3. The proposed work within the wetland buffer area is not listed as an accepted use under Section 6.02.5. 
Pursuant to Section 6.02.6.B, a Special Exception from the Board of Adjustment is required for any project 
not listed in 6.02.5. This application is subject to the requirements of Special Exception Criteria of 
Section 10.02.1 and (general criteria) and Section 6.02.7 (criteria specific to wetlands/wetland buffers).  The 
applicant has provided responses to the criteria listed in both referenced sections. (See attached 
Application and supporting materials).

4. The applicant has filed a concurrent Stormwater Permit with the Community Development Office (Currently 
under review).  In addition, the project will require a Site Plan Application to the Planning Board for the 
proposed building expansion, parking, and related site and stormwater improvements (To be filed). Lastly, 
Amherst Label is planning to adjust the lot line with lot 15-15-1 to accommodate the additional parking 
required for the increased building area. This will require a Subdivision Application also with the Planning 
Board (To be filed)

5. The applicant met with the Conservation Commission on March 17th and April 14th to discuss the project 
and receive input and guidance.  Attached please find the memo dated March 22, 2022 from Chairman Yule.  
Additional comments from the Commission are forthcoming.

6. As part the applicant’s presentation, they should be prepared to discuss the alternatives considered for the 
layout of the building addition, stormwater design, and impact to the functionality of the wetland and 
associated wetland buffer.

http://www.milford.nh.gov/
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Aerial Photo(s) of Subject Property: 
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View Looking Southwest From The Shared Northerly Curb Cut 

View Looking Southwest 
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View Looking Northwest From the Southeast Property Corner 

View Looking Northwest Showing The Southerly Portion of the Amherst Label Building 
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March 22, 2022 
 
To: Zoning Board of Adjustment 
 
Re: Case # 2022-05  Special Exception from Article VI, Section 6.02.6:B 
 
Wetland Buffer disturbance for a proposed expansion at Amherst Label (Map15Lot15) located at 15 
Westchester Drive. 
 
 
 
To the Board, 

The Conservation Commission met with the applicant at the March 10, 2022 meeting, and 
subsequently at an on-site review on Monday March 12th.  The members’ comments are listed 
below.   

The six Criteria for Special Exception Evaluation with MCC comments italicized 

1. The need for the impact.   
- The MCC would like a smaller warehouse to reduce the impact on the buffer.  
- The applicant refers to the current condition of the site which has no stormwater 
management systems in place. Their argument is that the stormwater retention basin will add 
to the functionality of the buffer and will be better than what is currently on the site. The 
preliminary design presented to the MCC will be a manmade structure that will not be able to 
provide the services, beyond water treatment, that the current buffer provides to the habitat 
surrounding the Amherst Label facility. 
 

2. The impact on plants, fish, and wildlife.   
This encroachment on the wetland buffer will impact the movement of wildlife across the 
landscape.  A manmade structure that is designed to hold water will not offer much in the way 
of cover, as opposed to the existing wooded landscape that exists. A large bull pine will be 
removed.  It provides shade, air quality treatment, water infiltration and treatment; several 
natural services that will not be provided by this stormwater retention basin.  This wetland 
buffer also serves as an ecological buffer providing ecosystem functions beyond the retention 
and treatment of stormwater.  A more creatively designed retention basin that incorporates 
the existing trees would lessen the impact to the buffer. 
 

http://www.milford.nh.gov/


 

 

3. The impact on the quantity and quality of surface and ground water.   
A properly designed retention basin will manage the stormwater to protect the quantity and 
quality of water that infiltrates to the water table.  The MCC asked the applicant to consider 
incorporating some of the larger trees, including the bull pine, into the retention basin design.  
There is a lot of research done by the UNH Stormwater Center which would assist the 
applicant with a more natural retention and treatment stormwater system design. 
 

4. The potential to cause or increase flooding, erosion, or sedimentation.   
There does not appear to be a reason to expect increased flooding, erosion, or 
sedimentation.  
 

5. The cumulative impact if all parties abutting this wetland or buffer were permitted to make 
equivalent alterations to the landscape.   
This retention and treatment basin will be designed to manage and treat stormwater.  
However, the buffer provides more services than just water treatment. These services aren’t 
adequately replaced with a manmade structure as designed. Incorporating some of the 
existing trees and shrubs which are treating the stormwater currently, would mitigate some of 
the impacts of this proposed buffer activity. There would be a noticeable impact if all the 
landowners replaced their natural buffer with a vegetated swale along Tucker Brook.   
 

6. The impact of the proposed project on the values and functions of the total wetland or 
wetland complex.  
Per #2, Wetland Buffers provide services in addition to simple filtration and regulation of water 
flow, notably habitat features required by characteristic wetland flora and fauna. The planned 
encroachment would severely degrade the latter. 

 

Summary: This location was originally developed in the knowledge that the border with Tucker Brook 
is formally designated as a Wetland Buffer. That Buffer forms one boundary limit on development at 
the site.  
The proposed work in the buffer will significantly compromise its existence, thereby reducing its 
value. It also requires the removal of a pine tree of unusual size and age which provides notable 
ecological value far above and beyond the already important substrate stability provided by its roots. 

The Commission  does not support the request for a Special Exception as presented in the current 
plan and requests the developer revise the plan to accommodate the comments made here with a 
view to minimizing  its impact, or preferably eliminating the need altogether for a Special Exception. 

Very Respectfully, 

John Yule, 
Milford Conservation Commission 
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